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June 23, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound)

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-8001),
Contoocook, NH in the amount of $2,400,000 to provide a community Transitional Housing Program'
for adults who have severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental illness, with the option to
renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective retroactive to July 1. 2020 upon Governor and
Council approval through June 30, 2022.100 % General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

Subtotal $2,400,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because In the interest of the public's health and safety, the
Department has identified this vendor as having the capacity to quickly respond to the Transitional
Housing Program needs for sixty (60) beds. This request is Retroactive because this abrupt change
in the Department's strategic approach led to additional negotiations, which delayed the execution
of the contract.

The purpose of this request is to operate transitional housing program(s) for adults who have
severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental illness (SMPI) and are eligible for
community mental health services and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital (NHH) or Designated Receiving Facilities (DRF). With successful transitions of these difficult
to place patients, it is anticipated that beds will open at NHH and the DRF(s)), thus having a positive
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Impact on individuals waiting in emergency departments for a bed. Patients partldpating In the
transitional housing program will receive the necessary services to support and promote
rehabilitation that will facilitate a transition to Independent living in the community.

The population served are individuals v/ho are at least eighteen (18) years of age and older
and have been diagnosed with a SMI or SPMI and meet eligibility criteria for community mental
health services at a community mental health center (CMHC) as defined in He-M 401. Approximately
60 Individuals will be served from July 1. 2020 to June 30, 2022.

The program serves the clinical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult men and
women with mental Illness. The program senrices include: psychiatric services, medication
management, clinical services, medical services, targeted case management, specialized and co-
occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community
connectedness and family Involvement.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance measures:
• Quarterly meetings to review submitted quarterly reports that outline the number of

t^eds occupied, programmatic services provided to each individual, each individual's
progress towards Independent living, and incoming cases.

• Annual review of the effectiveness of services will be measured using the Adult
Needs and Strengths Assessment, or other approved Evidence Based
assessment.

•  Evaluation of Individual service encounter data that is submitted through the
Department's Phoenix reporting system will inform care monitoring and ongoing
agency vride quality service monitoring.

•  Submission of monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements to the
Department for ongoing evaluation of the programs fiscal Integrity.

•  Engagement In financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal Integrity Is
maintained and programming is meeting the needs of Individuals served.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2 of the
attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties
and Govemor and Council approval.

Should the GoverrK)r and Council not authorize this request the sixty (60) bed Transitional
Housing Programs may not be available to individuals in need of transitional residential treatment
senrices who are transitloning from NHH or a DRF to the community which. In turn, limits the
availability of beds for individuals awaiting Inpatient hospital services across the State.

Area served: Statewide

Respectfully submlttc

m A. Shibinette

"Commissioner

Tht Deporimenlof Health and Human Servicee'Mission is to join communities and families
ut providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM |srUMBERP-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Transitional Housing Programs (SS-202I-DBH-03-TRANS-01)

Notice: This agreement and ail of its atta^ments shall become public upon submissipn to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Informailon that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed lo in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

NFI North, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 746-7550

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-
4117

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,400,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency

Nathan D. Wliite, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.1 Signaiure^x^

^ > Date:
1.1,2^ Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Stafb Agency Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.15 Approval by the N.R E>cpartmemof Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

06/26/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block i.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("SerN'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
th is Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, ail Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AC REEM ENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary', all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Stale be liable for any pa>ments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated flinds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds irom any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event fujids in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 'Die contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Stale reser\'es the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part b>'monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with ail federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
'Hie Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
propert}' laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for emplojinent
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Service.s shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during; the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, finn or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contiacting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 feilure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price,
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate tlie
Agreement and pursue ajiy of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hCTeof upon any further or otha- Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its solo
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor tJtai
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than filfeen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
conlcnl, and number of copies of the Tennination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. data/access/confidentiality/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received fiotn
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govemcd by N.H. RSA
chapter 9i-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers* compensation or
other cmolument.s provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATJON/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any.
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) da>'s prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or s«-ies of related transactions in
which a third parly, logeihcr with its afTiliaics, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
part)'.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assi^cc to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnisli to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ceriificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals tliereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or e.xempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assi^ee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. Ilie Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICED Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parries at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AM ENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only af\cr approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording us^ in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parlies to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. 'Hie headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any oflhe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent juri.sdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings witii respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitlonai Housing Programs

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

cu/DHHSrt2ioi9 Page 1 oi 1 Date m 2o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

Exhibit B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in the following Mental Health
regions:

1.1.1. A forty (40) bed Transitional Housing Program on the grounds of Governor
Hugh Gallen State Office Park Campus in Concord, New Hampshire.

1.1.2. An eight (8) bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region one (1)
at the Contractor's Bethlehem location.

1.1.3. A twelve (12) bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region four
(4) located at the Contractor's Bradford location.

1.2. The contractor shall submit copies of tobacco-free policies that apply to both inside and
on the grounds of each residence within thirty (30) days of the effective contract date.

1.3. The Contractor shall adhere to Administration of Medication standards as outlined In
NH Administrative Rule He-M 1200, Medication Standards, Part 1202, Administration
of Medications in Behavioral Health Programs (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1200,
Part 1202).

1.4. The Contractor shall complete and maintain certification and licensure in accordance
with NH Administrative Rule He-M 1000, Housing, Part 1002, Certification Standards
for Behavioral Health Community Residences (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1000,
Part 1002), and NH Administrative Rule He-P 800, Residential Care and Health Facility
Rules, Part 814, Community Residences at the Residential Care and Supported
Residential Care Level (hereinafter referred to as He-P 800, Part 814).

1.5. The Contractor shall comply with all State and federal laws and regulations
pertaining to the licensure and operation of a community residential program.

1.6. The Contractor shall be in compliance with applicable federal and Slate laws,
rules and regulations, and applicable policies and procedures adopted by the
Department and currently In effect, and as they may be adopted or amended
during the contract period.

1.7. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days unless otherwise specified.

1.8. Transitional Housing Program

1.8.1. The Contractor shall operate a Transitional Housing Program (Program)
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the supervision
for clients, who are:

1.8.1.1. Eighteen (18) years of age or older; and

1.8.1.2. Eligible for community mental health services in accordance with
New Hampshire (NH) Administrative Rule Chapter He-M 400,
Community Mental Health, Part 401, Eligibility Determination and
Individual Service Planning (hereinafter referred to as H^M 400,

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

Part 401).

1.8.2. The Contractor shall operate Transitional Housing Programs to provide
housing and rehabilitative mental health services and supports for clients
ensuring:

1.8.2.1. Any bed is available to clients with and without insurance.

1.8.2.2. Any bed Is available to clients regardless of their ability to pay.

1.8.2.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that no more than five (5)
percent of bed days are available to individuals without
insurance.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall provide the following services on an individual and group
basis, as necessary, in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 400,
Community Mental Heatth, Part 426, Community Mental Health Services
(hereinafter referred to as He-M 400, Part 426):

1.8.3.1. Individualized Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Services;

1.8.3.2. Psychotherapeutic Services, including sex offender treatment;

1.8.3.3. Targeted Case Management Services;

1.8.3.4. Partial Hospitalization Services; and

1.8.3.5. Medication Related Services.

1.8.4. The Contractor shall provide assistance and instruction to improve and
maintain a client's skills in basic daily living, personal development, and
community activities, that shall include, but are not be limited to:

1.8.4.1. Personal decision making;

1.8.4.2. Personal care, budgeting, shopping, and other functional skills;

1.8.4.3. Household chores and responsibilities;

1.8.4.4. Having relationships with people with and without mental illness;

1.8.4.5. Accessing a wide range of integrated community activities
including recreational, vocational, and cultural;

1.8.4.6. Participating In religious services and practices of the client's
choosing; and

1.8.4.7. Choosing and wearing clothing that is neat, clean, in good repair,
and appropriate to the season and activity.

1.8.5. The Contractor shall provide the written processes for referrals, admissions,
evaluations and discharges to the Department no later than thirty (30) days
from the contract effective contract date.

1.8.6. The Contractor shall serve clients referred from New Hampshire Hospital,
Designated Receiving Facilities, or Community Mental Health Providers who:

NFI North, inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

1.8.7.

1.8.8.

1.8.6.1. Have a severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent
mental illness (SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental
health services at a community mental health program, as defined
in He-M 400, Part 401;

1.8.6.2. Require extensive support and rehabilitation to successfully
transition from NHH or a DRF before moving to a less restrictive
alternative in the client's community of choice; and

1.8.6.3. Have been determined to no longer require the level of care
provided by NHH or a DRF.

The Contractor shall give clients from NHH first priority of admittance to the
Transitional Housing Program, followed by clients from DRFsand theCMHPs.
The Contractor shall: .

1.8.7.1. Maintain a list of referred clients, In order of referral date, for
whom admission is sought, but a bed is not yet available.

1.8.7.2. Collaborate with the Department on the data elements to be
captured in the list. The agreed upon list shall be made available
to the Department weekly, at a minimum.

1.8.7.3. Notify the Department, in writing, prior to enrolling non-NHH
clients into the Program.

The Contractor shall prioritize clients referred by NHH by having a referral,
admission, and evaluation process that:

1.8.8.1.

1.8.8.2.

1.8.8.3.

1.8.8.4.

1.8.8.5.

1.8.8.6.

NFI North, Inc.
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Places current inpatient clients at NHH ahead of all DRF and
CMHP referrals;

Provides for a written referral protocol that includes a review and
evaluation of the client's current situation, assessment of need

and disposition;

Responds to all referrals, in writing, as to the client acceptance or
denial into the Transitional Housing Program, including an
explanation of any contingencies placed on the acceptance, or
the reasons for denial of the client;

Responds to the client, with a decision in writing, within fourteen
(14) business days of receipt with a copy to the Department;

Notifies the Department in writing of any accepted referrals prior
to admission and transition into the Transitional Housing
Program;

Includes an admission process approved by the Department that
ensures the successful entry of accepted referrals into the
program. In the event that a referral is not successful in the
transition process, the Contractor shall communicate with NHH or
the agency that initiated the referral, verbally and in wri^o,

Exhibit B Contractor Initials 1
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the reason{s) for the unsuccessful transition; and

1.8.8.7. Includes approval by the Department for all clients being referred
by the community.

1.8.9. The Contractor shall develop and operate Transitional Housing Programs with
residential and rehabilitative mental health services and supports and be
operational no later than sixty (60) calendar days from the contract effective
date.

1.8.10. The Contractor shall become an enrolled Medlcald provider through the
Department's Medlcald program within In 120 days of the effective contract
date.

1.8.11. In the event the Department Incorporates Medlcald eligible Transitional
Housing Program(s) with Its Managed Care Organizations, the Contractor
shall be notified by the Department and provided 120 days to enroll as a
provider with the Managed Care Organizations for all Medlcald eligible
Transitional Housing Programs. Proof of enrollment shall be provided to the
Department within seven (7) days of enrollment.

1.8.12. The Contractor shall have a discharge process for clients who are discharged
from the Transitional Housing Program that:

1.8.12.1. Supports a maximum stay of two (2) years per client, per episode,
unless otherwise approved by the Department in writing.

1.8.12.2. Ensures participation In discharge planning meetings with
community mental health centers, NHH, other providers, and
natural supports;

1.8.12.3. Provides for a written discharge plan that Includes an evaluation
of the client's current situation, disposition and transition plan for
moving back into the community;

1.8.12.4. Retains the client's bed, In the event that:

1.8.12.4.1. A client's conditional discharge Is revoked, and the
client Is readmitted to IMHH, for up to thirty (30)
days.

1.8.12.4.2. A client Is voluntarily readmitted to NHH, for up to
thirty (30) days.

1.8.12.5. Demonstrates development and Implementation of a
collaborative relationship with the community mental health

•  program and natural supports. Including family, to develop the
terms of conditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-C:50 and
NH Administrative Rule He-M 600, New Hampshire Hospital, Part
609, Conditional Discharge, and to develop treatment plans
designed to return each client to the community.

1.8.13. The Contractor shall submit a transitional plan that transitions cllent^i^aRk Into
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor InlUals
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the community to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract
effective date, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.8.13.1. Specific steps to move existing program participants into more
integrated community settings.

1.8.13.2. A person-centered plan that incorporates their needs, and safety
of themselves and the public per Administrative Rule He-M 400,
Part 401 and He-M 400, Part 408.

1.8.13.3. Coordination with the client's local community mental health
program, peer support agencies, and other natural supports to
provide other services and supports to the client in the
community.

1.8.13.4. Involvement of the client's family to support integration into the
community, with the client's consent.

1.8.13.5. Identification of any barriers to placement in the community with
a plan to overcome those barriers, that emphasizes inten/entions
necessary to promote more opportunities for integration into the
community.

1.9. Medical Services

1.9.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered nurse is
available during the hours of 8:00 AM (EST) to 10:00 PM (EST), Monday
through Friday, and 8:00 AM (EST) to 4:30 PM (EST) on Saturdays and
Sundays, or.the availability of on-call nursing that is available to come on-site
during the weekends and evening hours. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.9.1.1. Services are provided on site, or in an office setting providing
there is no medical reason to provide the services on site.

1.9.1.2. Medical services include, but are not limited to:

1.9.1.2.1. An annual review conducted by the registered nurse
in consultation with the client's Primary Care
Physician, of:

1.9.1.2.1.1. Health history;

1.9.1.2.1.2. Health status;

1.9.1.2.1.3. Supports identified or needed to
maintain physical, mental, and social

^  well-being incorporating: and
1.9.1.2.1.4. All Core Standardized Assessment

required domains,

1.9.1.2.2. Instruction in, and assistance with, taking prescribed
medications independently. In accordance with He-
M 1200, Part 1202, Administration of Mecticgtions in

NFI North, Inc. Exhibits Contractor Initials
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the Transitional Housing Program; and

1.9.1.3. Residential staff are trained to meet the requirements specified in
He-M 1200, Part 1202, Administration of Medications in the

Transitional Housing Program.

1.10. Health Services

1.10.1. The Contractor shall provide and triage health services for medical and
psychiatric needs twenty-four (24) hours per day seven (7) days per week.

1.10.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) masters level
clinician is on-call evenings, weekends and holidays to provide;

1.10.1.1.1. Emergency treatment;

1.10.1.1.2. Crisis intervention;

1.10.1.1.3. Coordination of Involuntary Emergency Admission
petitions, in accordance with New Hampshire (NH)
Revised Statute Annotated (RSA) 135-C:27 and NH
RSA135-C:28;and

1.10.1.1.4. Coordination of revocation of conditional discharges,
in accordance with NH RSA 135-C:51.

1.10.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered
nurse is available on-call the remainder of each day the masters
level clinician is not on-call, including weekends and holidays, to
provide:

1.10.1.2.1. Education;

1.10.1.2.2. Problem solving and support regarding medications;
and

1.10.1.2.3. Response to health-related concerns.

1.11. Specialized Treatment

1.11.1. The Contractor shall ensure sex offender services; risk assessment
evaluations: and treatment for clients who have co-occurring disorders, or
require sex offender treatment, or other court-mandated treatments are
available, as necessary or as requested by the Department, ensuring services
are not be unduly delayed or denied.

1.12. Wellness Management

1.12.1. The Contractor shall support a culture of wellness and provide clients with
access to services and activities, including but not limited to. "Healthy
Choices-Healthy Changes".

1.13. Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA)

1.13.1. The Contractor shall ensure clinicians are certified in the use of the New

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor initials.
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Hampshire version of ANSA 2.0, or other Department-approved evidence-
based tool if they are a clinician serving the adult population.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinicians obtain certification through the
completion of the Praed Foundation test.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall submit ratings to the Department via the database
- managed for the Department in order to allow client-level, regional and
statewide outcome reporting by the 15th of every month, in ANSA format.

1.13.4. The Contractor shall ensure ratings generated by the New Hampshire version '
of the ANSA 2.0 or other Department-approved tools are utilized to:

1.13.4.1. Develop an individualized, person-centered treatment plan.

1.13.4.2. Document and review progress toward goals and objectives and
assess continued need for community mental health sen/ices.

1.13.4.3. Assist in determining eligibility for State psychiatric rehabilitation
services.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall document assessments using the New Hampshire
version of the ANSA 2.0, or other approved tool when conducting re
assessments in accordance with the timeframes specified in He-M 401.

1.13.6. The Contractor shall ensure an alternate evidence-based approved
assessment meets all ANSA 2.0 domains in order to meet consistent reporting
requirements. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.13.6.1. Written approval is received from the Department prior to
implementing a substitute for the ANSA 2.0.

1.13.6.2. Monthly reporting of data through the substituted system includes
the ability to complete client-level, regional and statewide
reporting.

1.14. Pre-Admission Screening and Annual Resident Review

1.14.1. The Contractor shall assist the Pre-Admission Screening and Annual
Resident Review (PASARR) Office of the Department to meet the
requirements of the PASARR provisions of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1987.

1.14.2. Upon request by the PASARR office and with the appropriate authorization to
release information, the Contractor shall provide the PASARR office with the
information necessary to determine the existence of mental illness or mental
retardation in a nursing facility applicant or resident and shall conduct
evaluations and examinations needed to provide the data to determine if a
person being screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and has
active treatment needs.

1.15. Recovery and Resiliency Approaches

1.15.1. The Contractor shall provide clients with access to services that prom^e the
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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values of recovery and resiliency through an emphasis on a strength-based
approach and person-centered service planning, in accordance with NH
Administrative Rules He-M 400, Part 401 and He-M 400, Part 408.

1.15.2. The Contractor shall utilize the client's individual service plan to assist the
client with identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers,
family members, neighbors, landlords, employers, and others in order to
create a network of support that will build resiliency and strength based
recovery and wellness skills.

1.16. Complaint Manager Services

1.16.1. The Contractor shall designate a staff member to perform the responsibilities
of complaint manager In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 200, Practice and Procedure. Part 204, Rights Protection Procedures
for Mental Health Services.

1.17. Access to Primary Care Physicians

1.17.1. The Contractor shall assist each client with securing a local primary care
physician (PCP) of the client's choosing, within thirty (30) days from the
effective contract date.

1.17.2. The Contractor shall coordinate client care with the PCP.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall exchange health information at regular intervals with the
written consent of the client or guardian.

1.18. Coordinate Care with the Legal System

1.18.1. The Contractor shall assess the legal commitment status of clients residing in
the program and, if deemed appropriate, provide for the continuation of the
commitment via the proper legal process.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall provide coordination of care with the legal system when
indicated, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.18.2.1. The NH Department of Corrections.

1.18.2.2. The applicable NH County Attorney's Office.

1.18.2.3. The NH Attorney General's Office.

1.19. Quality Assurance

1.19.1. The Contractor shall perform, or cooperate in the performance of. quality
improvement and utilization review activities as determined necessary and
appropriate by the Department, within timeframes specified by the
Department, in order to insure the efficient and effective administration of the
NH Medicaid program.

1.19.2. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to:

1.19.2.1. Maintaining detailed client records as required by He-M 400. Part

NFI North, inc. Exhibits Contractor Initials
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1.19.2:2. Submitting data necessary to compiy with federal reporting
requirements.

1.20. Client's Contribution for Clothing, Food and Housing

1.20.1. The Contractor shall ensure clients are not required to sign residential leases.

1.20.2. The Contractor shall ensure clients are aware of and abide by housing rules.

1.20.3. The Contractor shall collect up to thirty (30) percent of each client's income to
be applied toward the cost of housing and shall collect an additional amount,
subject to approval by the Department in writing, of each client's Income to be
applied toward the cost of clothing, food, and other essential items. Financial
reporting and analysis of client contributions shall be monitored by the
Department upon request, through the auditing of client accounts and
reconciliation of the Contractor's expenses charged to clients in comparison
to expenses' charged to the Department for general fund reimbursement.

1.20.4. The Contractor shall establish a policy in which the agency works with the
client on establishing a clothing and food allowance based on income and
address steps to support the client in preparation for, and management of, a
rent increase upon discharge.

1.20.5. The Contractor shall provide the process and method for calculating;
collecting; accounting for the client's contribution and share of expenditures;
and for maintaining records for collections and expenses to the Department
for approval no later than ten (10) days from the contract effective date.

1.20.6. The Contractor shall ensure client contribution policies, processes and
methods are designed to support the client's return to independent living while
providing client contribution toward the client's clothing, food and housing
costs.

1.20.7. The Contractor shall ensure clients without incomes are not denied entry to
the program due to an inability to provide a client contribution.

1.20.8. The Contractor shall ensure client funds in excess of client contribution, if
maintained by the Contractor, are kept separate from program operation
revenues and expenses, and in client-specific individual accounts.

1.21. Staffing

1.21.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to ensure the safety of
clients, staff, and the community.

1.21.2. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited to:

1.21.2.1. One (1) Medical Director who:

1.21.2.1.1. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in the
United States;

1.21.2.1.2. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in New
Hampshire; and meets the requirements of RSA

mNFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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135-C: 2. Xlli;

1.21.2.1.3. Is Board-eligible or Board-certified In psychiatry
according to the regulations of the American Board
of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc., or Its successor
organization at the time of hiring; and

1.21.2.1.4. Maintained Board eligibility or certification
throughout his or her tenure as Medical Director.

1.21.2.2. One (1) administrator or Director who Is responsible for the day-
to-day management, supervision, and operation of the residence.

1.21.2.3. One (1) registered nurse, licensed In accordance with NH RSA
326-B, who Is responsible for the delivery and supervision, of
nursing services.

1.21.2.3.1. One (1) registered nurse, as sited in Subparagraph
1.21.2.3., may be on-call during weekends and off-
hours and shall provide telehealth and face-to-face
services.

1.21.2.4. One (1) nurse trainer who provides supervision to any staff
member authorized to administer medications.

1.21.2.5. A sufficient number of personnel who shall provide nursing
services, consisting of registered nurses, licensed practical
nurses, and other staff. Nurses shall be licensed as required by
RSA 326-B.

1.21.2.6. A sufficient number of direct care personnel who meet the twenty-
four (24) hour scheduled and unscheduled needs of the clients In
accordance with the individual client service plans, which Includes
but Is not limited to one (1) part-time peer support specialist as
defined in NH Administrative Rule He-M400, Part 426.13 (d)(4)
during daytime programming hours.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one (1) direct staff member per
residence, per shift, when a client Is occupying the residence.

1.21.4. The Contractor shall provides staffing contingency plan to the Department for
approval within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, which includes,
but is not limited to:

'  1.21.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of
key personnel or other personnel before or after signing of the
Agreement;

1.21.4.2. Allocation of additional resources to the Agreement in the event
of Inability to meet any performance standard;

1.21.4.3. Discussion of time frames necessary for obtaining replacements;

NFl North. Inc. ExhibitB Contractorlnitlais
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1.21.4.4. Capabilities to provide, in a timely manner, replacements and
additions with comparable experience; and

1.21.4.5. Method of bringing replacements and additions up-to-date
regarding this Agreement

1.22. Emergency Response Plan

1.22.1. The Contractor shall submit an Emergency Plan for clients In the event of a
natural, intentional or accidental incident or threat that affects the client's
health and safety to the Department for approval within ten (10) days from the
effective contract date.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information {Privacy Rule)
{45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act {HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor" shall meet with the Department quarterly, or as requested by the
Department, to review quarterly programmatic reports submitted in a format specified
by the Department. The Contractor shall ensure data elements reported include, but
are not be limited to;

3.1.1. Total number of vacant and occupied beds during the reporting period.

3.1.2. Total number of Individuals referred, admitted, and discharged during the
reporting period.

3.1.3. All admitted client's region of origin prior to placement at the transitional
housing program.

3.1.4. All discharged client's region of discharge from the transitional housing
program.

3.1.5. Ail client's legal status such as pending charges, convictions, involuntary
emergency admission {lEA) status.

3.1.6. All client's progress towards independent living including:

3.1.6.1. Hospital readmission rate{s);

3.1.6.2. Projected discharge plans for each client;

3.1.6.3. Clinical updates; and

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials'

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01 Page 11 of 18 DateO /O/c 0



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

3.1.6.4. Programmatic offerings, which may include but are not limited to;

3.1.6.4.1. Social activities and outings.

3.1.6.4.2. Vocational support services.

3.1.6.4.3. Wellness groups.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit all required data elements via the Phoenix system, except
for the ANSA data, ensuring any necessary system changes are completed within six
(6) months from the effective contract date.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit individual client-level demographic and encounter data,

including non-billable individual-specific services to the Department's Phoenix system
or on an alternative format ■ identified by the Department, as specified by the
Department.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure all client data submitted includes a Medlcaid ID number for

clients enrolled in Medicaid and data elements that include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Client's housing status upon discharge;

3.4.2. Employment status;

3.4.3. Smoking status; and

3.4.4. Mental health and substance use disorder(s) diagnoses.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit monthly data no later than the fifteenth {15th) of each
month for the prior month's data, unless otherwise approved by the Department in
writing.

3.6. The Contractor shall review the Department's tabular summaries within five (5)
business days of the summaries becoming available.

3.7. The Contractor shall ensure submitted data represents a minimum of:

3.7.1. Ninety-eight (98) percent of billable services provided; and

3.7.2. Ninety-eight (98) percent of clients served by the Contractor.

3.8. The Contractor shall ensure submitted service and member data shall conforms to
submission requirements, at a minimum of:

3.8.1: Ninety-eight (98) percent of the data records; and

3.8.2. All unique member identifiers shall be accurate and valid.

3.9. The Contractor shall submit quarterly program status reports to the Department no later
than the 15th of the month following the quarter as outlined and identified by the
Department.

3.10. The Contractor shall submit monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements.
The Contractor shall ensure:

3.10.1. The Profit and Loss Statement includes a budget column allowing for budget-
to-actual analysis. ^

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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3.10.2. Statements are submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of each month
and are based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenues and expenditures, whether or not generated by,
or resulting from, funds provided pursuant to the contract.

4. Performance Measures
/

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to enhance
contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based
on successful outcomes.

4.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English
proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the
Contract shall include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

NFl North, Inc. Exhibits Contractor initials
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5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with
the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal
and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the Department
for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are
prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder,
which file shall include all information necessary to support an eligibility
determination and such other information as the Department requests. The
Contractor shall furnish the Department with all fornis and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or
require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
' well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding
that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and
that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records IN r\
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6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and alt invoices submitted to the
Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of sen/ices.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the Department,
the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained
pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of units provided for in
the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review
of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor.

7. Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Office
Park Campus

7.1. The Contractor shall agree to use the State of New Hampshire owned buildings
identified by the Department to provide the Transitional Housing Program on the Hugh
Gallen State Office Park South Campus In Concord. New Hampshire.

7.2. The Contractor shall agree to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with New
Hampshire Hospital (NHH) for grounds and building maintenance other than specified
in Subparagraph 7.1.

7.3. The Contractor shall agree to the use of premises of State of New Hampshire owned

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit 8 Contractor Initials
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buildings in Subparagraph 7.1. as follows:

7.3.1. Routine building maintenance is defined .as normal wear and tear of the
building structure, envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed assets (not
including kitchen appliances).

7.3.2. Routine building maintenance does not include damage resulting in abuse or
neglect by the Contractor, its agents, clients, and visitors.

7.4. The Contractor shall agree to the following responsibilities:

7.4.1. Establish accounts for all utilities (Natural Gas. Water. Sewer. Waste
Disposal and Electric) in the name of the Contractor, with NHH named as
"second" on each utility account. Invoices foreach utility shall be sent directly
to, and paid by. the Contractor,

7.4.2. Be responsible for reimbursing the State based on allocated square footage
of the Howard Recreational Center.

7.4.3. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Housekeeping
Checklist for routine repairs and maintenance needs. The Maintenance and
Housekeeping Checklist will be available for the Hospital to review and
prioritize during the monthly inspection conducted by the Hospital. Liaisons
will be the only persons who shall contact Hospital Facilities or Environmental
Services Offices;

7.4.4. Liaison will be responsible for all keys, to include distribution, tracking, and
communication with the Hospital Facilities Office for lock repair or key
replacement;

7.4.5. Be responsible for routine household tasks, such as, moving of furniture,
changing light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, toilet unclogging;

7.4.6. Be responsible for housekeeping in accordance with checklist references in
Paragraph 7.4.3. above;

7.4.7. Be responsible for window air conditioners maintenance, repairs, and
replacement;

7.4.8. Be responsible to call State Office Complex Police if there is an emergency
requiring maintenance after normal business hours;

7.4.9. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of household
appliances, such as refrigerators, dishwashers, washer and dryer, and
stoves;

7.4.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping
features and decorations, such as gazebos, gazing balls, etc.;

7.4.11. Conduct monthly fire extinguisher inspections, in coordination with Hospital
Facilities Office. Maintain, or replace the extinguishers annually as
necessary;

7.4.12. Shall take responsibility for any damage due to occupancy, or leasehold

NFr North, Inc. Exhibits Contractor Initials

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01 Page 16 of 18 Datefe|)^ /^/)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

improvements including interior painting and floor covering repair or
replacement. In no case shall the Contractor make improvements without the
written permission of the Hospital Facilities Office;

7.4.13. Properly maintain ail equipment and will be responsible to pay for any
equipment needing replacement or repair;

7.4.14. Use the Department's Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved
by the IT Department;

7.4.15. Pay for the personal alarm ("Life Alert") system;

7.4.16. Be responsible for snow removal and de-icing of steps and walkways
adjacent to the buildings;

7.4.17. Be responsible for the purchase, supply, laundering, and management of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths):

7.4.18. Be responsible for laundering and management of all client personal items;

7.4.19. Assure all buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanitary, and clean
between scheduled cleaning inspections and services provided by the
Hospital; and

.7.4.20. Be responsible for disposal of recycling materials.

8. Termination Report and Transition Plan

8.1. in the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within fifteen
(15) days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Department a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

8.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Department and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the

Transition Plan to the State as requested.

8.3. In the event that clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to
having services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan. The Transition Plan shall also specify the process for uninterrupted
delivery of any other services the Contractor provides under this Agreement.

8.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients, and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

8;5. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the Department,
the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records m^tained

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials,
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pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of units provided for in
the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review
of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by;

1.1. 100% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a (Subrecipient or
Contractor), In accordance with 2 CFR 200.330;

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

3.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals through the DHHS Medicaid Fee for
Service program in accordance with the current, publically posted Fee for
Service (FFS) schedule located at www.NHMMIS.NH.gov.

3.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor shall
be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the applicable
Managed Care Organization for such services.

3.3. For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance or
payors.

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, and for operational costs contained in.Exhibits C-1 and C-2
for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the
Department to access contract funds provided through this Agreement.
3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating

the Department is only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only
be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the services
provided and contain the following items for each client and line item
of service:

3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.

3.4.1.2. Date of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible
third party reimbursement received.

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

NFt North, Inc. Exhibit C Contractor initials
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EXHIBIT C

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure^the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed DHHS.DBHInvoicesMHS@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

7. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7.
Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10; The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,.the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may. be made by written agreement of,both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

NFI North. Inc.- Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange- Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. . If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDtNG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUiREMENTS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D:41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about ^
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numt>er(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performarice (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Date

Vendor Name: FX /OoAVu. 7

Namff.
Title:

c
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: ■

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). .

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly."

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Dat

fZ

— .-hA^N. Pzb

cu/DHHS/ii0Tia Page 1 of 1 Dato

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out beiow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

•5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction lie entered Into,-It shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eiigibllity of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

^r\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

r
infomiation of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. E^tp^t for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded frorh participation in this transaction, in

PRP 79 remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
default.

PRIf^/lARY eeVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wili
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: ^

Date Name:^ jKh
Title: ^ \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: Pam.\ c., Oa kjKJ , P N
TUI^. t \ ^Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTiFtCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under tfre age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does riot apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Name: h f-Z- /j .o.

^ I i S ( ? r?
Date Name:

Title: ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in. section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AaareQation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

I

f. "Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health'Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. rv

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Iniltals )
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Exhibit!

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obliaatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials T ^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 3 of 6 Datef



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or.limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business^Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services lb
The State -Gonttactor

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name ohAuihorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Sign^^yre of Authorized Representative

L. pi b
Name of Authorized Represen^tlve

if. y- Tv/L
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

a/3014 Exhibill

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Aoreement

Page 6 ot 6

Contractor Inillals

Date ip



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiLrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding'agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Parti 70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Hurrtan Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: ^ Xa/C.

C\\\ho
Title: ,

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor InHlata '
AccountablGty And Transparency Act (FFATA} Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is: 0^1 I A I 0^1

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/" 10713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

' A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not.adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R, Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract. '

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II.. METHODS OF SECURE.TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.'

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only^transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

• 1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States, This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

•B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly-
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this

Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor wiil maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HtPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPnvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

i, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State ofNe\v Hampshire, do hereby certify ihatNFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit COTpyration registered to Iransaci business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992. 1 further certify that ail fees

and documents required by the Secretory of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number; 0004907983

y 55>

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto .set my hand and cause to be affwcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5lh day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Onrdncr

Secretarv of Stale



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Doug Giles , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Secretary,
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 30th , 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present
and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Paul L. Dann, PhD, Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of NFI North, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 18th^'.2.c^2.c^
inature 6f Elected OfficerSignature

Name: Doug Giles
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#: 1010755 NORTHAME76

ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MU/DO/YYYY)

6/24/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementis).

PRODUCER

USi insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01601

855 874-0123

rAJ8^Ho.exti:855 874-0123 ["^.ho): 781-376-5035
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B: North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
INSR

SUBR

ms. POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DOfYYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MMfOO/YrrY) UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-UAOE OCCUR

PHPK2076152 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

ISES TEaocci^fwal
MED EXP (Any one paf»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I 5^ I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
lEa eccitleni)

s1.000.000

$1.000.000

$5.000

$1.000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UA8ILITY PHPK2076145 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 si ,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

^Comp $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

Coll $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accldenil

UMBRELU LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB704947 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $10.000.000

AGGREGATE $10.000.000

X RETENTION$10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY y, „
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECLn'IVEi 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

4067334594 07/01/2020 07/01/2021
V PER
* STATUTE

OTH-

£a_

N/A
E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE ■ POLICY UMIT $1,000,000

Professional PHPK2076152 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

RE: Transitional Housing Program

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street
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NFI North Mission Statement

The mission of NFI North is to inspire and empower people to reach their full

potential so that they can live successfully within their own home and community
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.;

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North. Inc. (NFIN), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibiiityforthe Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to e)?>ress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit Weconducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, v/hetiier due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessment, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to NFIN's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We belie\« that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a tuasis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NFIN as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 1(1) to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, NFIN adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-profit Entities
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-ProfH Entities. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we ha\« also issued our report dated September 30, 2019
on our consideration of NFI N's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of taws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to descril^e the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI N's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards In considering NFIN's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Septemtjer 30, 2019



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Due from affiliate (note 8)
Investments (note 4)

Total current assets

Property and equipment (note 5):
Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipment and furnishings
Motor vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5)
Due to affiliate long-term (note 8)

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

3,601,304

1.503,652

52,715

92,725

501,559

5,751,955

535,992

8,077,625

687,261

977.196

10,278,074

(6,193,628)

4.084,246

12,556

9,848,757

196,385

170,551

682,102

337,978

188,514

1,575.530

2,638,080

219.235

2,857,315

4,432,845

5,332,403
83,509

5.415,912

9,848,757

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Activities
*

Year ended June 30, 2019

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenues and other support:

Contracts $ 24,112.477
Contributions;

In-kind 884.498

Other 2,794
Interest and dividends 42,567

Miscellaneous 1,207

25,043,543

Net assets released from restrictions 26,565

Total revenues and other support 25,070,108

Expenses:
Program services 21,281,943
Supporting services (note 8) 2,475,254

Total expenses 23,757,197

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating
activities nonoperating activities 1,312,911

Nonoperating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 1,559
Gain on sale of property and equipment 46,000

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 1,360,470

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions 29,578
Net assets released from restrictions (26,565)

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 3,013

Increase in net assets 1,363,483

Net assets at beginning of year 4,052,429

Net assets at end of year $ __|^15^912_

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30. 2019

Program
services

Supporting

services Total

Personnel expenses:
Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits S 14,978,585 1,211,060 16,189,645

Other expenses:
Contracted services 1,719.338 998,671 2,718,009

Other direct costs 1,033,680 114,463 1,148,143

In-kind 876.259 8,239 884,498

Consumables 761,262 — 761,262

Occupancy 734,380 23,438 757,818

Transportation 376,281 26,347 402,628

Equipment 217,040 33,438 250,478

Interest 106,751 8,630 115,381

5,824.991 1,213,226 7,038,217

Depreciation and amortization 478,367 50,968 529,335

Total expenses $ 21,281,943 2,475,254 23,757,197

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NF! NORTH, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities;
Increase in net assets

. Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of proper^ and equipment
Net realized and unrealized gains on investment
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

Due from affiliate

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest

1,363,483

529,335
(46,000)
(1.559)

113,431

(10,698)
6,721

(92,726)
(54,137)
134,805
231,006

(15,791)

14,558

2,172,428

(350,325)
(633,388)
46,000
133,388

(804,325)

124,384

(240,814)

(116,430)

1,251,673

2,349,631

3,601,304

115,381

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) isa not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to provide community-based social
services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North American Family Institute. Inc.
(NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of. directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are
derived from services contracted with the States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human
Services, Children, Youth & Families, Medicaid, private insurers, and local public school districts.

[a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, \which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified as follows;

Withdonor restrictions-Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations thatmay or will be met by
actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions-tiet assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. E)qDenses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets

or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor
restrictions are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations
of restrictions with donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed restriction is
fulfilled to the extent offrie e)?>ense incurred unless the expense is for a purpose that is directly
attributable to another specified external source of re\«nue.

(b) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
(ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised
goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects Ihe consideration to which we expect to be
entitled in e)change for those goods or services (i.e., the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and fee-for service
contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with e>q5enses being reirrtiursed for services
delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is generally as expenses are incurred. Rate
based contracts are recognized with expenses t)eing reimbursed for services delivered over the course
of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source which is generally vyhen
services are provided. Revenues consisted of 15% for cost reimbursement contracts and 85%' for rate
based contracts for the year ended June 30, 2019.

(Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(c) Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is
generally exempt from income ta>es under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken no significant uncertain
tax positions.

(($ Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and e)^>enses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. Legislative
budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to continue existing
programs.

(f) Cash Ecfutvalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows,

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair value at the
date of gift Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method o>«r the following estimated useful
fives;

Buildings and improvements 15-33.3 years
Equipment and furnishings 2-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to the organization's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of: 1) the useful life of the leasehold
improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the lease include the
years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(h) Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical healthcare costs. As of June 30. 2019, the estimated liability
for healthcare claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $89,439 and is included in accrued
payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial position.

(Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(i) In-Kind Contributions

In-kind contributions are generally recognized at fair value on the date received. During fiscal 2019, .
NFIN received in-kind contributions of rent, services, equipment and furnishings, and consumables
amounting to $884,498.

(J) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NAFI vould receive upon the sate of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction betv«en market participants as of the measurement date.
NAFI uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and liabilities based on those valuation
methodologies employed. The ttiree-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below.

•  Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

•  Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risK ete.).

•  Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NAFl's own assumptions in determining the fair
value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. NAFI utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs to the e)dent possible.

(k) Subsequent Events

NFIN has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2019 and through Septerrteer 30, 2019, which is
the date that tee financial statements were available to be issued. NFIN has determined there are no
material events that would require recognition or disctosure in this report through this date.

(I) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In 2019, NFIN adopted ASU No. 2016-14 Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. This guidance is Intended to impro\te tee net asset classification
requirements and the information presented in the financial statements and notes about a not-for-profit
entity's liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows. Main provisions of this guidance include
presentation of twc classes of net assete versus tee previously required three. This guidance also
enhances disclosures for conposition of net assets without donor restrictions, liquidity, and e)q3enses
by both their natural and functional classification.

(Continued)



NF! NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

A summary of the net asset reciassification required by the adoption of ASU 2016-14 as of June 30,
2018 follows:

(

ASU 2016-14 Classifications

Without donor With donor Total net

Net assets classifications re^rlctions restrictions assets

As previously presented:

Unrestricted $ 3,971,933 — 3,971,933
Temporarily restricted 2I_ 80.496 80,496

Net assets as reclassified $ .„„3^971_j93^

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued by the PASS In May 2014 and is
intended to improve the financial reporting requirements for revenue from contracts vyith customers.
The ASU establishes a five-step model and application guidance for determining the timing and amount
of revenue recognition. The related application guidance in the ASU replaces most existing revenue
recognition guidance in GAAP. The ASU became effective for NFIN for the year ended June 30, 2019.
NFIN's adoption of the ASU did not materially change the timing or amount of revenue recognized by
NFIN.

ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made, was issued by the FASB in June 2018. The new ASU is intended to assist entitles
in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonexchange
transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange transactions subject
to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. The ASU clarifies that a
contribution is conditional if the agreement includes one or more barriers that must t>e overcome for the
recipient to t>e entitled to the assets transferred and a right of return for the transferred assets or a right
of release of the promisor's obligation to transfer assets. The ASU became effective for NFIN for the
year ended June 30, 2019. NFIN's adoption of the ASU on a modified prospective basis did not have a
material effect on its financial statennents.

(2) Financial asset and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, 2019, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures, such as operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows:

Cash and cash equivelents 5 3,601,304
Accounts receivable 1,503,652
Short-term investments 501,559
Due from affiliates 92,725

Total financial assets a^ilable within one year $ ̂__^^^^5i699i240^

10 (Continued)



NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financiaf Statements

June 30, 2019

(3) Line of Credit

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut, Inc. (NAFICT). NFI Vermont,
Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts, Inc. (NFI), an on demand $8,000,000 line of credit from ID Bank. The
line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus
0.50% per annum, (6.00% as of June 30, 2019). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI,
NFIN, NAFICT, NFIV and NFI and are collaterallzed by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual renewal. As of
June 30, 2019, $1,600,000 was outstanding under this line of credit, none of which was due from NFIN.

In addition. NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TD Bank for the year ended June 30,
2019 for a total of $1,208,124. The Letter of Credit agreemente can t)e utilized by all subsidiaries in the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not coliateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit agreements are
a requirement of NAFI's vwrkers' compensation carrier.

(4) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Cash and equivalents $ 388,461
Corporate bonds 62.489
Equities 50,609

Total investments $ 501,559

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, except
corporate bonds that are considered Level 2. There were no transfers betiAeen fair value levels during the
year.

11 (Continued)



NFi NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(5) Long-Terni Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2019 consisted of tt>e following;

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate:
0.00% to 8.00% fixed

Total mortgages payable

Vehicle notes secured by automobiles:
0.00%-8.59% fixed

Total vehicle note payables

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

Fiscal year

due

2022-2031 $

2020-2024

Amount

2,664.502

2,664,502

169,963

169,963

2,834,465

(196,385)

2,638,080

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will be forgiven at
the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide housing in accordance with
stipulated condilions. In addition, certain mortgages payable contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount due

196,385

200,045

348,222

122,463

125,997

1,841.353

2,834,465

Interest expense was $115,381 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

12 (Continued)



NFI HORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(6) Operating Leases

NFIN leases certain property, motor vehicles, and equipment under noncanceiable {except under certain
circumstances) operating lease arrangements. Rental and lease expense amounted to $144,455 for the
year ended June 30, 2019, including $49,935 of related party property charges descrit)ed in note 8. Future
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019 are as follows;

Amount due

Year ending June 30:
2020 $ 60,000

2021 32,771

2022 18.023

2023 4.608

$  115,402

(7) Retirement Plan

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which annual
contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's board of directors. NFIN elected to contribute $129,281
for the year ended June 30,2019.

(8) Related-Party Transactions

North American Family Institute. Inc. (NAFI). an affiliate, charges an administrative management fee for
supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. These allocated costs amounted to
$1,164,780 for the year ended June 30, 2019, and have been included in supporting services expenses in
the accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

I n addition, NFI N pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI. This charge was
$49,935 for the year ended June 30, 2019, and has been included in the accompanying statements of
activities and functional expenses.

Cost rein^ursement underpayments resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30, 2019 in the amount
of $219,235. This amount has been reported as due to affiliate in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30, 2019 in the
arnount of $92,725. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate In the accompanying statement of
financial position and is expected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and affiliated corporations (NFIN, NFIVT, NAFICT and NFIM) may periodically make short term loans,
not to exceed one year, to its affiliated corporations, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2019, there were no short term loan transactions with NFIN.

13



KPMG LLP

Two Financial Cenier
60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.;

We have audited, In accordance witti the auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report ttiereon dated September 30, 2019.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to deterrrane the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of NFIN's internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
errployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
rrisstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or corrtbination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control tfiat is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

CXir consideration of internal control was for the iinited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Gven these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFIN's financial statements are free from material
misstatement. we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

Tlie purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control or on
corrpliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perform^ in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

LL-P

Septerrtoer 30, 2019
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ANICE A. WILLIAMSON, BA

603) 746-7550 Office
3mail: JanWilliamson@nafi.com

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUAI.IFTCATTONS;
30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, the last 25 in management
and program administration.
B.A. in Sociology backed by professional development courses in human services
and management.
Graduate of U.S. Army Command and General Staff College.
Strong track record in developing and implementing training and support
programs.

Experienced in budget development/administration and grant writing.
Accustomed to representing agency/particip^t interests through public speaking
and personal representation.
Extensive experience in developing Individual Service Plans vocational
curriculums.

Extensive experience in developing Individual Educational Plans and alternate
school curriculums.

Extensive experience with administrative functions, including supervirion of staff,
hiring, terminations, staff development-and evaluation.
Skillful in developing and managing contracts.
Adept at interpreting and ensuring program compliance with state and federal
regulations.
Adept at interpreting Special Education:regulations and managing alternate
special education schools.
Strong leadership qualities and proven willingness to accept responsibilities
demonstrated throughout civilian and rnhilary careers.
High level of self-initiative and resourcefulness in achieving managerial
objectives.
Adept at implementing and maintaining the Mental Illness Management Services
(MIMS).

EXPERIENCE AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS: '

1998 to Present NFI NORTH, INC. \
Regional Director \
Responsible for overseeing the operations of all programs in my region.-Provide
leadership, supervision, guidance and clinical support. Responsible for communicating all
policies and procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on-
call availability.

1994 to 1998 NFI NORTH, INC.
Program Director, North Country Shelter, Jefferson. NH
Responsible for total operations of co-ed program for 15 NH court ordered youth and
over twenty-five full-time staff. This included placement, counseling, treatment, special
education, and all HR functions.

1993 to 1994 NORTHERN NH DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES & MENTAL
HEALTH, Wolfeboro, NH

Residential Coordinator of lower Carroll County located at the Carroll County Mental
Health Center. Coordinate and implement all residential programs for individuals with a
rrn^ntal illnffgg Rpcnnncihlp trvr all I.^O/Fnhanpp family r.arp rpciHpntial nrnoramc



two program managers and a staff of 18 residential and vocational trainers
providing services for a caseload of 30. Administer a $500,000 annual budget.
Developed a profitable small business program as a vocational training tool for
the developmentally disabled.
Established highly successful, non-traditional alternative vocational programs for
those in need of more comprehensive therapeutic programming.
Planned/supervised programming and staff involved in developing and delivering
three separate vocational training programs for the developmentally disabled and
mentally ill throughout central New Hampshire.
Directly involved in agency's receipt of $200,000 "Mobility Grant" for
developing the TBI program.
Established strong relations with other TBI programs nationwide.
Introduced the area's first vocational training program for the developmentally
disabled by establishing a day program at a local church hall.
Formulated and implemented all program models and management systems on
which the Franklin Falls Farm program was developed.
Implemented and coordinated services with outside therapists (speech,
occupational, physical and behavioral).
Supervised all job coaches and trainers.

980 to 1983 LACONIA STATE SCHOOL AND TRAINING CENTER, Laconia, NH
Recreational Therapist

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

1978 to 1979 SAU #4, New Hampshire
Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School
1977 to 1978 HOLBROOK SCHOOL, Holbrook, MA
Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School.

MILITARY EXPERIENCE:

1978 to 1998 UNITED STATES ARMY NATIONAL GUARD, Concord, NH
Demonstrated strong leadership and management abilities resulting in career progress
from the rank of Private to current rank of Lt. Colonel. Served as the Deputy Director of
Personnel overseeing a staff of 20 at the Stare level. One of New Hampshire's first two
female soldiers to graduate from Officer Candidate School. 1988 recipient of the NH
Army Commendation Medal for Outstanding Service. 1986 recipient of the Army
Commendation Medal for Meritorious Achievement. NH's 1985 Junior Officer of the
Year. 1993 recipient of the Meritorious Service Medal for Exceptional Meritorious
Service.

EDUCATION:

Nortli Adams State College, North Adams, MA. B.A. in Sociology.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

1984 to Present Completion of many staff development workshops and seminars related
to direct care and management within human services.

1995 Facilitator/Trainer of Moderate Level Challenge Course.

1 r»or» 1 AAO T t o A T»A AT 4Axir» A-KII-SO^PA FT? T T7/->r'



blun-oii L. Hilodcnu

An ociniinistTflior vs'iih nn esiablished record of responsible decision making in all phases
of project and prognim management. Highly skilled In all aspects of non-profit
management. Worked clTeclivcly with employees at all levels, strong work cihic, hard
v/orking and dependable. Worked with diverse population of people including ages 6
months to eiders and a variety of challenges, ensuring an optimal quality of care.

.■Vrcas of Expertise
Budget Administration Customer Service Training and Development
Hrogram and Project Management SialTRecmilment Licensing and Regulnlory

A.sscssmeni and Service Planning
Qualil'lcalions

•  K.xceptionai skill in personnel supervision and training program coordinniion-
•  GHectivc in budgeting and lung-range pionning
• Oiitstamling ability lo work with community, governmental and professional

groups
•  Proficient in prioritizing, orgnnizaiion, delegating and inotivuting
•  Extensive experience in developing programs from concept to ongoing operation
•  Excellent computer skills
•  E.xccllcnl onil and vkTittcn communication

Rcicvimt E.xpcriencc iiiiii Skills
Management and Admini-strniion

•  Supervised the daily operation of several program,s with n total or75+
people, sliifflng, and tnuniiig to ensure goals arc being met

•  Assisted in preparation and administration from $500,000 to $2 million
tmmial operating budgets maintaining all budget targets

•  Designed and implemented Databusc to assist in tracking clients, service
delivery, lo ensure client satisfaction and oii-timc daily product delivery

•  Analyzed statistical data and compiled weekly, monthly and annual
projection reports, used data to intprovc organizational performance and
iower costs •

•  Ensuring monlhiy supcrvi.sion and meetings provided to. all employees lo
ensure proper coinmiinicntion at all levels

Orgfliiiziug and Coordinating
•  Initiated itemized bidding specification process; evaluated bids and

presented recommendations and lower overall costs
• Managed various complex site i-elocntions assuring close out ofoid sites

and the rc-cstablishmcni of nil new systems in the new sites
•  Courdiiinted and developed in-servicc training programs to improve

customer service and keeping stafl" updated on all policies
•  Created lime lines to complete special projects

Miii-kcling luut Public Relations



•  Developed ideas for crcnling new projecls, priorilizcd work and
iinplemcnled rdiow-up procedures resulting in more clllcienl and
profitable work flow

• Conducted cold colling campaign, acquiring new woik areas for young
entrepreneurs increasing new accounts by 5 % in the first 30 days

Kniploymcnt History

Progrnm Director 2012-Prcsenl
ND North. Tmnsitional Housing Services

Business Development Coordiiinlor 2010-2012
Resident Core Pharmacy, Meihucn, MA

OwMCr/Opcralor Siiaron's Cleaning 2010-7.012
.Methuen, MA

Mculfll Health Cn.se Muungcr 2009-2010
ESMV, Lawrence. MA

Child Care Provider 2008-2009

Koryn's Kiddies, Guildhall, VT

Director 2008-2009

Safe Haven, .Lancaster. NH

Child Siip|]urt Services and Special Project Manager 2003-2008
GLCAC Inc., Head Start, Lawrence. MA

Progfiim Manager 2000-2002
Grcnicv Lawrence Mental Health Center, Lavvrencc, MA

Project Manager 1997—2000
NFI, Dnnvcrs, MA

Assessment Social Worker 1996-1997

Massachusetts Department of Social Services. Maverhill, MA

Program Director and Consultant 1991-1996
NFI Midway and North CounnySlicKcrs

li^diivalioii

SPRJNCFlliLD COLLLGE, Springllcid, MA 1996
Master of Sciencc-Hunian Service Administration

UNIVERSITY OF LOWELL, Lowell. MA 1986

B.S. Public Service-Administration of Criminal Justice



MARY ANN SILVERIA

marvanr>silveria(S)nafi.com

SUMMARY:

•  Strong clinical and administrative background and skilled in team environment.
•  Excellent interpersonal, professional, and communication skills focused on developing positive

rapport and strong liaison with diverse clientele.

•  Proven management and supervisory abilities with solution oriented focus; strong
organizational, leadership, evaluation, and assessment skills.

•  Skilled in intensive crisis intervention; staff training and development and licensing
requirements of several funders

EDUCATION:

•  Certificate Community Human Service Management, Mass Council of Human Service Providers,
May 2007

•  Bachelor of Social Work. Salem State College. Magna Cum Laude, May 1986

•  Associate of Mental Health Technology, Northern Essex Community College, High Honors, June

1983

•  Certificate In Community Residence Manager, Northern Essex Community College High Honors,
June 1982

EXPERIENCE:

NFI North, inc. 8/19-present Program 0/reaor- Administrative and operational oversight of 40 bed,
co-ed transitional housing program for adults, individuals with severe and persistent mental illness and
co-occurring disorders transition from long term psychiatric hospital stays with the plan to eventually
move towards becoming successful members of the larger community.

NFI Massachusetts 1982-8/2019 Numerous positions (from direct care through senior

management), active in the development of services to clients with mental Illness, brain injury and
cognitive issues including deinstitutionallzation, community based residential and individual support

( services, rehabilitation and individualized treatment planning.

Director of Adult Services 1993-2019 - Senior management team member responsible for
overseeing all administration and operations of numerous adult multi-funded programs. Provide
leadership, supervision, guidance and dinlcal support to staff. Responsible for communicating all policies
and procedures, ftscal planning, contract negotiations and oversight, program development; on-call



responsibilities, liaison between internal/external programs and agencies; quality assurance and
Improvement.

Program/Project Director 1985-1993 • Clinical and programmatic operations Including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/dischatge plans; fiscal management; recruitment, hiring, development,
supervision, and evaluation; licensing/accreditation and local regulations; documentation and
recordkeeplng.

Assistant Program Director 1983-1985 - Assisted the Program Director in the overall functioning
and operation of an adult mental health program, Including administrative tasks, staff supervision,
group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.

Residential Couf\selor 1982-1983 - Supervised the daily activities of clients, providing ongoing

support, guidance, and role modeling. Facilitated client Improvement in the areas of symptom
management, personal responsibility, community living, social skills and behavior; client advocacy; crisis
management, documentation/record keeping and counseling.

Salem Mediation Program 9/85-6/88

Volunteer Mediator • Helped to resolve disputes among couples, family members, neighbors and
adolescents struggling with truancy as well as minor criminal and small claims referred by the judges of
Salem District Court.

Churchview Adolescent Program 10/81-12/82

Cose Advisor- Worked with adolescents with mental health issues providing direct client care to

aid in maximizing socialization and problem-solving skills and independence In the community.

Haverhill/Newburvport Human Services 9/81-7/82
Case Manager-Aided In maximizing Independence of severely handicapped, institutionalized,

medically Involved, adults with developmental disabilities in staffed apartment setting. iSP
development, ADL skills, documentation and record keeping; provided client advocacy and behavior
management.

Danvers State Hospital 10/74-10/81

Mental Health Assistant It/Case Manager - Direct patient care of acute and chronically mentally
III and geriatric adults; led weekly socialization and ADL skills groups; treatment plan development and
Implementation; supervised and directed duty schedule for ward staff. Coordination of services,
diagnostic assessment of patients' needs; problem identification, monitored and coordinated
implementation and provision of services, provided patient advocacy and ensured continuity of care.

REFERENCES:

Furnished upon request
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KERrRILEY-PIGKFORDl.l
guSi^SS'yt ̂'<

OBJECTtVE To utilize my education, skills and experience to work in the field of human services, more
specifically the mental health field.

WORK HISTORY PROGRAM DIRECTOR. NF1 NORTH, BCTHLEHEM NH

October 2017-present

•  Perform daily tasks for the successful running of a residential program

•  Facilitate weekly supervisions and staff meetings

•  Manage consumer treatment and document in the electronic medical

record

•  Prepare annual budget and submit monthly billing

•  CollaboratB vrith outside agencies and departments

•  Certified as a trainer In IMR and SEP

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SUPPORTS/AREA DIRECTOR, NHS LITTLETON NH

August 2013-Octobei' 2017

•  Coordinated with outside agencies

•  Supervised all staff. Including case managers

•  Oversaw evidenced based practices: ACT, SEP, CM and FSS

•  Collaborated with local police department and BEAS

•  Coordinated adult and children's treatment

CASE MANAGER/FUNCTIONAL SUPPORTS SPECIALIST, NHS, UTTLGTON NH

August 2009-August 2013

•  Provided outreach to clients with mental illness while adhering to

their treatment plans

•  upheld cunfidentlality of all clients

•  Linked clients with communip/ resources

•  Created and Implemented treatment plans and quarterly reviews

EDUCATION MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN LEADERSHIP, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, MARCH 2020

BACHELORS IN BEHAVIORAL SCIENCE, GRANITE STATE COLLEGE, MARCH 2011

ASSOCIATES IN HUMAN SERVICES, NHCTC, MAY 2006



QUAURCATIONS Trainer for Illness Management and Recovery and Supported EmploymenL

ANSA certified. Dartmouth Supported Employment supervisor training. CPR

and first aid trained.

Pagg [ 2 l^erl Riiey-Pickford



Noel Chipman

,  NoelChipman@NAFl.com

j IfFNSF '
New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker April 2004
-License number 1203

EDUCATION

Masters in Social Work. Simmons Graduate School. Boston MA May 2001
Bachelor ofArts in Sociology, llartwick College. Onconta NY Mayl997

pnnFECCmNAl. work EXPERIENCE

Transitional Housing Services. Concord NH January 1.2012-Present
- Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services
provided by NFI North Transitional Housing Services in Concord. Bradford and Bethlehem
- Manager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program and its clinical, case management, supported
employment, educational and direct care staff
• Oversee and provide Individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not
guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other criminal
backgrounds . ,, , ,
- Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Communay
Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities and arrange evaluations when needed
• Oversee, review and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans
- Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staff and agency staff
. Review, of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and joint Commission
standards and provide feedback and training on record keeping
- Provide the schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a RestorativePartial HospitalizationCRPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges . . . . , ,
• Collaborate with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the clinical orientation of
THS

- Facilitate new consumer Interviews, quarterly reviews, client centered conferences, family meetings, discharge
meetings and other various meetings with outside providers
- Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensure our THS programs are meeting the needs of our
consumers, other outside agencies and the community at large
-Supervisor for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns
Transitional Housing Services. Concord NH May 2003- January 1.2012
-Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team
- Provides therapeutic clinical services for individuals with severe and persistent mental Illness
and/ or substance abuse Issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in a rehabilitative partial hosplcahzation
program
-Provides individual, family, group and milieu therapy „ .w,,.,
-Completes comprehensive psychosodal assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings , . r
-Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare planning for
difficult to reach clients ... , ,, ,
-Awareness of legal Issues including guardianships, court orders, probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony
-Supervision of treatment team case managers and student interns
-Illness management and recovery train the trainer onne
Maul Memorial Medical Center. Kahulul, HI I""® 2005-Janua^ 2006
-Psychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with severe mental illness and / or substance abuse issues
and forensic patients on a short-term inpatient psychiatric unit



•Comprehensive psychosodal assessments, treatment plans / education plans, substance abuse screening, daily
treatment team meetings and discharge meetings
•Provide crisis intervention, Individual therapy, family therapy and daily life skills groups
•Case Management service / discharge planning
Souza-BaranowsW Correctional Center, Shirley MA 2001-2003
■Diagnostic assessment crisis Intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeuiic and substance abuse
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting
-Comply with and adhere to institutional safety procedures in accordance with UMCHP / DOC established policies
-Case management / discharge planning
•Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings
-Daily triage and segregation rounds
-Leader of a student intern support group .
-Supervision of Student interns
McLean Hospital Belmont, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
•Case management / clinical work on an adult inpatient psychiatric unit
•Daily patient rounds, psychosodal assessments and 1:1 psychotherapeutic services
•Group therapy Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group
•Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters. community residences, partial hospital / day treatment programs,
family work and completion of treatment plans
Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
•Assessments, group Intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations
•Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and CorLeader oi various program groups

PROPESSIONAl. DEVELOPMENT
• Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills
- Certified Signs of Suidde Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer
• ANSA Ceitificatlon •
• Toastmastcrs International Speechcraft Certificate Program
- NFl Leadership Program: Completed six month program in 2014
• Certified Illness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer
- Certified Supported Employment Practitioner
- Certified DBT Practitioner
• Agency trainer for Family Systems, Group Process and Counseling Skills
- NFl North Conference Presenter 2013 and-2015
- NAFI Spirit of the Community Committee
- Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program in june 2008
- Former NHH Assaulted Staff Action Program rcsponder
- Former NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member
- Former NHH Ethics Committee member

AWARnt / RKfOGMTIONS

- NFl North Agency Shining Star Award (201S)
- NFl North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013)
• Two-time gold star award winner (2009 and 2011)
- Special recognition award winner (200S)



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Jan Williamson Regional Director $121,000 32% $38,720
MaryAnn Silveria Program Director $ 88,000 100% $88,000
Sharon Bilodeau Program Director $ 97,000 100% $97,000

Keri Riley-Pickford Program Director $ 80,000 100% $80,000

Noel Chipman Clinical Director $97,000 100% $97,000 .
Bethany Ricker Clinician $65,000 100% $65,000
Danielle Van Dusen Social Worker $65,000 100% $65,000


